
Sincerely, 

UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

REGION ""' 
SAM ~UNN 


ATLANTA FEDERAL CEKTER 

6! fORSYTH STREET 


ATLANTA (,F,ORGL\ 3030J~g9flO 

MAR 29 2011 


CJlRTlfIED MAIL 
.RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED 

Mr. Jefircy W. Styron 
CSX Transportation, Inc. 
500 Water Stree~ 1150 
Jacksonville, Florida 32202 

SUBJECT: 	 CSX Transportation, Inc. 
Consent Agreement and Final Order 
Docket No. CERCLA-04-20 11·2047(b) 

Dear Mr, Styron: 

Enclosed please find an executed copy of the Consent Agreement and Final Order 
(CAPO) that resolves the Comprehensive Environmental Respon.<;e, Compensation, and Liability 
Act (CERCLA) matter (Docket No. CERCLA·Q4·20I 1·2047(b)) involving CSX Transportation, 
Inc. The CAFO was filed with the Regional Hearing Clerk, as required by 40 C.F,R, Part 22 
and became effective on the date of the filing, 

Also encJQsed, please find a copy of the ~Notice of Securities and Exchange Commission 
Registrants' Duty to Disclose Environmental Legal Proceedings.~' This document puts you on 
notice ofyour potential duty to disclose 10 the Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) any 
environmental enforcement actions taken hy the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). If 
you have any questions with regards to the SEC's enviroruucntal disclosure requirements, you 
may refer to the contact phone numlxr at the bottom of the SEC Notkc. 

[(you have any questions, please call Ms, Deanne Grant at (404) 562-9291, 

;(~ 

,~er'ChiCf
A Enforcement Section 

Enclosures 

Inletrn.ll Add'Qss (URL;. httpJfWww.epa,gov 
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CONSENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORDER 

I. N!Uure of the Action 

I. This is a civil penaity proceeding pursuant to Section 109 of the Comprehensive 
Enviroumental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act (CERCLA), as amended, 42 u.s.c, 
§ 9609 and pursuant 10 the Conwlidated Rules of Practice Governing Administrative ~ses.sment 
of Civil Penalties, and the RevocationITcnninalion or Suspension of Pennits (Consolidated 
Rules), codified at 40 C.F,R. Part 22. Complainant is the Director of the Alr, Pesticides and 
Toxies Management Division. Region 4, United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), 
Respondent is CSX TmnspOltatioll. Inc. 

2. Complainant and Respondent have conferred (or the purpose of settlement 
pursuant to 40 C.FR. § 22, 18(b) and desire to resolve thh matter and settle the ailegations 
described herein without a formal hearing. Therefore. without the taking of any evidence or 
testimony, the milking of any <U'glUIlem, or the adjudication uf any islOue in this malter. and in 
accordance with 40 C _FR § 22_ I3(b) and 22_ I 8(b). this Consent Agreemcllt and Final Order 
(CAFO) will ~imultaneously commence and conclude thls matter. 

II. Prelin1inarv Statements 

3. The authority to take aC1ion under Section 109 uf CERCLA, 42lJ_S_C. § 9609 is 
vested in the Administrator ofEPA The Administrator of EPA has delegated this authority 
under CERCL\ to the Regional Administrators by EPA Delegation 14-31 dated May ll. 1994_ 
The Regional Administrator, Region 4, has rede1egated to the Director, Air, Pesticides and 
Toxics Management Division, the authority under CERCLA by EPA Region 4 DeJegation 14-31 
dated March 8, 1999. and updated Augu:<.t 6, 2004, Pursuant to thei<e delegations. the Director of 
the Air, Pesticides and Taxies Management Division has the authority to commence an 
enforcement action as the Complainant in this matter. 

4. Respondent. CSX Tran..<;portation, Inc .. does business in the State of Tennessee. 

5_ Respondent is a "pe,,",n" as defined in Section 101(21) of CERCLA, 42 U_S.C. 
§ 9601(21)_ 



6. Respondent has a "facility" as that lenn is defined by Section 101(9) ofCERCLA, 
42U.S.C § 9601(9). 

7. RcsPQudent's faciHty is located at 3000 Seaboard Lane, Na'ihviile, Tennessee 
3721 L 

8. Respondent is an "owner or operator" of the facility as that term is defined by 
Section 101 (20)(A) ofCERCI.A, 42 U.S.C. § 9601 (20)(A). 

Ill. EPA's Allegation ofViQlation 

9. Section 102(a) of CERCLA, 42 U.S.C § 9602(a}, required the Administrator of 
EPA to publish a list of subst<mces designated as hazardous substances which. when released 
into the envirorunent. may pre. ...ent substantial danger to public health or welfare or the 
cnvirorunent and to promulgatt.'l regulations establishing the quantity of any hazardous substance 
the reJease ofwhieh was required ill be reported under Section 103(a) ofCERCLA, 42 U.s.C 
§ 9603(a). EPA has published and amended such a Jist, including the cQrresponding reportable 
quantities (RQ) fur those substances. This list initially published on April 4, 1985 (50 FeJl,Jl&g. 
J3474) and periodically ameruled, is codified at 4(J C.F.R. Part 302. 

10, Section 103(3) ofCERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9603(a), and the regulations found at 
40 C.F.R. § 302.6, require a person tft charge of a facility or vessel, as soon as he or she h.as 
knowledge of a release of a hazardous substance from such facility or vessel in an amount equal 
to, or greater than the RQ, to immediately notify the National Response Center (NRC), 

11. Respondent was in charge ofthc facility during the rclt:vant period desl.,.'1'ibcd 
below. 

12, Creosote is a "hazardous substance," as that tCUll is defined by Section 101(14) of 
CERCLA, 42 U.s.c. *9601(14), with an RQ of J pound, a.. specified in 40 C.F.R. § 302.4. 

l3. On August 6, 2010, Respundent had a release ofcreosote above the RQ at the 
facility, 

14. Respondent viQlated the notification reqrnrements of Section 103(a) ofCERCLA. 
42 U.S.c. § 9603(0), hy failing to immediately notifY the NRC as soon as Respondent had 
knowledge ofthe release of creosote in an amount equal to or greater than its RQ at 
R~l)(mdenes filcility and is therefore subject to the assessment of penalties under Section 109 of 
CERCLA, 42U.S,C. § 960<), 

15, Pursuant ill Section 109 ofCERCL", 42 u.s.C. § 9609, and 40 C.F,R, Part 19, 
EPA may as~ess a penalty not to exceed $37,500 for each violation of Section l03(a) of 
CERCLA 42 U.S.C. § 9603(3), that occurred after January 12,2009. Each day a violation of 
Section 103 continues constitutes a separate violation. Civil penalties under Section 109 of 
CERCLA,42 U.S,C. § 9609, may be assessed by an Administrative Order. 
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16. For [he purposes of this CAFO, Respondent admits the juriooictionnl allegations 
set out above but neither admit'i nor denies the factual allegations set out above, 

17. Respondent waive!> any right to eontCbt the allegations and it& right to appeal the 
proposed final order acoompanyillg the Consent Agreement. 

18. Re~pondent consenlS to the asses.sment of mill agrees to pay the civil penalty as 
set forth in this CAPO. 

19, Respondent certifies that as of the date of it" execution of this CAPO, it JS in 
compliance with all relevant requirements of CERCLA, 

20. ComplIance with the CAFO shall resolve the aUegations of violations contained 
herein. This CAFO shall not otherwise affect any liability of Respondent to the United States 
oUler than as expres:sed herein. Ne.ither EPA nor Complainant waives any right to bring an 
enforcement action against Respondent for violation of any federal or stale statute, regulation or 
permit, to initiate an action for imminent and suh!>tantial (,.lldangerment. or to pursue criminal 
enforcement. 

21, Complainant and Re.'lpondent agree to settle tbi .. matter by their execution of this 
CAPO. l1te parties agree that the scttleJI:lCnt of this matter is in the public interest and that this 
CAPO is consistent willi the applicable requirements of CERCLA. 

V, bnat Order 

22, Respondent ,hall pay a civil pellllity of FIVE THOUSAND EIGHT llU:-IDRED 
DOLLARS ($5,800) for the CERCLA violation which shall be paid wi!hin !hirty (30) days of !he 
effective date of this CAFO, 

23. Respondent ~hall pay the CERCLA civH penalty by forwarding a cashier's or 
certified check, payable to "EPA Hazardous SubstaJlc.:e Superfund" to one of the following 
addresses: 

BY MAIL BY OVERNIGHT 
U.S, Environmental Protection Agency U,S, Bank 
Superfund Pal-ments Attention: Natalie Pe31'5On (314) 418-4087 
Cincinnati Finance Centcr 1005 Conventkm Plaza 
P,O, Box 979076 Mail Station SL-MO-C2GL 
St. Louis, Mis<ouri 63197-9000 St. Louis. Mh.s,ouri 63101 

The check shall reference on its face the name and tbe Docket Number of the CAFO. 
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24. At the time of payment, Respondent shall send a separate copy of the che,:k. and a 
written ~tf11ement that payment has been made in accordance with this CAFO. to the following 
persons at the foHowing addresses: 

Regional Hearing Clerk 
U.S. EPA. Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street, S.W. 
Atlanta, GA 30303 

Deanne D. Grant 
U,$. EPA, Region 4 
Air, Pesticides & Taxies Management Division 
61 Forsyth Street, S.W, 
Atlanta, GA 30303 

Saundi Wilson 
Office of Environmental Accountability 
U.S. EPA, Reg.on 4 
61 Forsyti. Slreel, SW. 
Atlanta, GA 30303 

25. For the purposes of stale and federal income taxC8, Respondent shall not be 
entitled, and agrees not to uttempt, to- claim a deduction for any civil penalty payment made 
pursuaIlllo this CAPO. Any attempt hy Respondent to deduct any such payment1i shall 
constitute a violation of this CAPO 

26. Pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3717, EPA is entitled to assess interest and penalties on 
debts owed to the United States and a charge to cover the COSt of processing and handling a 
delinquent daim. Interest will therefore begin to accrue on the civil penalty from tne effective 
date of this CAFO if the penalty is not paid by the date required. Interest will be assessed at the 
rate Cblabh'hed by the Secretary ofTreasury pursun"! to 31 U.S.C. § 3717. A charge will be 
assessed to cover the costs of debt collection. including processing and handling costs and 
attorney fees. In addition, a pen~lty charge will be assessed on any portion of the debt that 
remains delinquent more than ninety (90) days after payment is due. 

27. 
matte!". 

28. 

Complainant and Respondent shaH bear their own COSt'; and attorney fees in this 

This CAFO shaH be binding upon the Res.pondent, its successors. and assigns. 

29. 
proceeding: 

The foHowing individual is authorized to receive service for EPA in this 
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Caron B. Falconer 
U,S. EPA, Region 4 
Air Pesticides & Toxies Management Division 
61 Forsyth Street, S,W, 
Allanta, GA 30303 
(404) 562-8451 

30. Each undersigned representatjve of the partiCiS to this CAPO certities that he, or 
she is fully authorized by the party represented to enter into this CAFO and legally bind that 
party to tt. 

THIS SECTION INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
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VI. EffectiveDate 

31. The effective date of this CAFO shall he the date on which the CAFO t~ fired with 
the Regional Hearing Clerk. 

AGREED AND CONSENTED TO: 

CSX Transportation, Inc. 

BY~' J_\.;;;....",. (Signature) DatJ::(J.J'/Z-/1 

Name: ~'b<"~""'MP"", [Typed OJ' Printed) 

Title: ,):".1/. ~~(Ig'ov!. 1'i'?£&4~ ,,~,>(Typed or PrintJ:d) 

u uvironmen o ection Agency 

~ 
. Banister, Djw:.tor 


Air, Pesticides & Toxics 

Management Division 


Region 4 


-& 
APPROVED AND SO ORDERED thi' ,ll? dayof 1l:fe".~.2011. 

~6 .• ~_ 
Susan B, Schuh 
Regional Judicial Officer 
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CERTlFICAT~9F SERVICE 

I hereby certify that I have this day served a true and correct copy of the foregoing 

Consent Agreement and Final Order. In the Matter of CSX TraQsportatiQu. Inc" Doc~et 

Number: CERCLA-04-2011-2041ilil, on the parties listed below in the !Danner indicated: 

Caron B. Falconer (Via EPA's internal mail) 
U.S. EPA, Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street 
Atlanta, GA 30303 

Terra Dubois (Via EPA's: intemal mail) 
U.S. EPA Region 4 
Offi<:e of Environmcllta1 Accountability 
61 Forsyth SlIeet 
Atlanta. GA 30303 

JelTrey W. Styron (Certified Mail - Return Receipt Requested) 
CSX Transportation. Inc. 
500 Water Street, J 150 
Jacksonville, FL 32202 

Patricia A. Bullock. egional Hearing Cler 
United Slates Environmental 
Protection Agency. Region 4 
Atlanta Federal Center 
61 Forsyth Strcct, S.w. 
Atlnnta, GA 30303 
(404) 562-9511 
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EPA ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE CONTROL NUMBER FORM 


TO liE COMPLJl1'EI) BY THE OBlGINATINe OFflIJl' 
(Attach. eopf flfthe titual. ordtc ad tnorn:ltHa1letter to Dtffltdant/RespoDdent) 

Thisrorm",*"ori&indedby:.s~._u_n_d_i_w_il_._u_n___-::::--:-_________.. _J::,-;!:,,"2-,1:../,,:,_ 
(Nanw) 	 (])ate) 

Region 4, ORe. OEA 	 (404) c"'" '504In ...'___::.-_-'-_-'-_-,,;=,-_________" _,.,~, 
(Oifk<) (1:._N_j 

~o 
oo o 
D (Mr;iRid BlIIiac ~ Cost Packalt' DOt l"II!fpIlred 

o Thisfsa_ 

TMS~~~~NmDr.,______________________ 

The_~""_OIIkr. 

OJSIlUItrnpN: 

A. 	JUPtClAt OlU!EIlS: c.... f( IJIis ,.... widlm attHbed ~ ot(he tror.t pap 01 the VINAL JVOfCJAl, ORDER 
.... be ....... tII: 

" Dtbt Tr1Il:kia« Offttft 
EQ:riI'~ ~SettilIPo 

~ III luslktRM tw 

rAh. 'il1....,;..aftW&tSlatloa 

W~D.c. ltI44 


a .\DMINtST1lA!IyE 9RPE1!S: C(lfIia of ddI rona witb IQI attathed topJ of u.., fflIqt PI'If: ofthI!' A~Ye 0nIer stao.N I:rc to: 

,. 
~ 


